July 30, 2009

MEMORANDUM
TO: Prince George's County Planning Board
VIA: Steve Adams, Urban Design Supervisor

FROM: James Jordan, Urban Designer
SUBJECT: Detailed Site Plan, SP-99021
GICPD Academy
The Urban Design staff has reviewed the Detailed Site Plan for the subject property and presents the
following evaluation and findings leading to a recommendation of APPROVAL with conditions.
EVALUATION

This Detailed Site Plan was reviewed and evaluated for compliance with the following criteria:

a. Conformance to the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance in the C-S-C Zone and the
requirements of Section 27-464.02 for a Day Care Center in the C-S-C Zone.

b. Conformance to the requirements of the Landscape Manual.
C. Site Design Guidelines.
d. Referrals.

FINDINGS

Based upon evaluation and analysis of the subject application, the Urban Design staff recommends
the following findings:

1. Location : The subject property is located on the north side of Suitland Road (MD 218),
west of Huron Avenue. The property is bounded to the north by a 20-foot-wide public alley,
to the east by the Huron Avenue right-of-way, to the west by additional commercial
property zoned C-S-C, and to the south by the Suitland Road right-of-way.
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The Proposed Development: The purpose of the subject application is for approval of a day
care center facility for 75 children to be located in an existing shopping center in two
existing buildings. One of the buildings is two stories, approximately 19,680 square feet,
and is used as the structure for the church sanctuary; the other is a single-story structure of
approximately 8,303 square feet. Both properties are zoned C-S-C, with the larger building
proposed as dual usage for the church and day care, and with the smaller building proposed
as day care use only. One outdoor play yard will be provided to accommodate the day care
use.

Community Planning: The subject application was referred to the Community Planning
Division and in a memorandum dated August 2, 1999 (Osei to Jordan), the following
comments were provided:

sNot all locations and sites are suitable for day [care] centers. Sites within existing
shopping centers require close scrutiny to ensure that floor space is sufficient,
outdoor play areas are safe/available, parking arrangements are safe and adequate,
dropping off and loading points are secure and that childrenss welfare is given
primary consideration in layout of facility..

It was also noted that sufficient shade in the play areas had not been provided, per the
requirement of Section 27-464.02 (1)(A)(v), to afford protection from the sun.

Staff and the applicant have negotiated a compromise with respect to plan revisions that
address the above-mentioned concerns in a manner that resolves the issues, while
demonstrating conformance to the requirements of Section 27-464.02.

Neighborhood Revitalization: The subject application was referred to the Neighborhood
Revitalization Division and in a memorandum dated August 10, 1999 (Libenstein to
Jordan), the following comments were provided:

s-rom observation of the site and comments by local merchants it is clear that there
is a need for a pick-up/drop-off lane in front of the school. The configuration of the
driveway is such that cars waiting at the school block access to the entire shopping
center.

ul he space left unfenced behind Play Yard 1 is an indefensible space that is
currently used for illegal vending and hanging out. It is also questionable what
value this narrow space (play area 1) can have for play beyond providing access to
natural light. Any equipment installed would not have adequate safety clearance for
children to move around within the space.

sMerchants are already short of parking within the center, reduction by four spaces
near the Church will only increase this problem. The parking space next to the pipe
bollards should not be counted as it is not possible for a car to get out of this space
if there are trucks in the loading zone. That space should instead be configured as
back-up space for turning around.
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mlrash is a major issue for all of the merchants along this alley. The community has
been battling illegal dumping for years and much public money has been spent
trying to curb this problem. Elimination of the Churchss dumpster will only
compound this problem by diminishing the proper disposal capacity yet farther. Is
the school/day care not required to have a screened trash receptacle? Do they serve
any meals or food? This is a very serious issue for the community and must be
addressed immediately by the Church and Academy.

al he yew plants specified for outside the fence bear poisonous red berries generally
not recommended for use in places with access by small children..

Several issues raised in the Neighborhood Revitalization memorandum warrant further
discussion.

1.

A pick-up/drop-off lane in front of the school,
specifically Day Care Center No. 1, would provide
for a smoother transition from Huron Avenue to the
site, and also would allow for clear-cut vehicular
circulation within the shopping center parking
compound, but the widths of the entrance at Huron
Avenue (33 feet) and the drive aisle within the
parking lot (23 feet) are such that access to, and
egress from the parking lot should not be Impeded
based on the plan layout. Furthermore, an
additional entrance exists from Suitland Road in
proximity to Day Care Center No. 2.

Play yard no. 1 as noted, adjacent to the Huron
Avenue right-of-way, has been deleted. All
outdoor play area will be accommodated in the
larger play area at the shopping center interior,
adjacent to the church sanctuary building.

Upon review of the subject application by the
Permit Review Section it was found that based on
when the shopping center was constructed, the
current uses, and the requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance, the number, location, and layout, of
parking spaces provided on the proposed plan is
acceptable.

Staff has observed an existing dumpster located iIn
the approximate location of the proposed play
yard. Construction of the play yard will require
the removal and relocation of the dumpster. The
site plan does not indicate the future dumpster
location, nor does it indicate 1T screening will
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be provided. It 1s recommended that the dumpster
location be provided on the plan in a location
that does not impede vehicular circulation, allows
for access for trash removal service, and does not
encroach on any drive aisle, parking, or loading
space.

5. Meals for the students will not be prepared at the
Day Care Center location.

6. All references to syew plants. have been removed
from the plan.

The site development data are as follows:

Zone C-S-C
Use Day Care Center
Site Area 2.38 acres
Building Area

Building No. 1 19,680 square feet
Building No. 2 8,303 square feet
Enrollment 75 children
Playground Area Required 2,813 square feet
Playground Area Provided 2,930 square feet
Parking Required (1 space per 8 children) 10 spaces
Parking Provided 10 spaces

Conformance to the Requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and Landscape Manual : The
subject Detailed Site Plan is in general conformance with the requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance for development in the C-S-C Zone. Section 27-464.02 of the Zoning Ordinance
sets forth the requirements for Day Care Centers in commercial zones, and the proposed plan
is in general conformance with those requirements.

The subject plan is exempt from the requirements of the Landscape Manual. The proposed
addition of the day care center use to both the existing church and the vacant commercial
building on the subject property does not involve an increase in gross floor area. The day
care center use is categorized as a low impact, while the church and the former retail sales
facility are considered medium impact uses.

Conformance to the Requirements of the Woodland
Conservation Ordinance - The site 1s not subject to
the provisions of the Woodland Conservation Ordinance.
Although the site is more than 40,000 square feet , it
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contains less than 10,000 square feet of woodland. A
Tree Conservation Plan i1s not required.

There are no environmental Impacts for the subject
development proposal.

8. The Office of Child Care Licensing had not responded to
the referral request at the time the staff report was
written.

9. The subject application was referred to all applicable
agencies and divisions. The Permit Review Section
raised several i1ssues regarding revisions and
additional information to be provided on the plans.

The applicant has subsequently revised the plan and
addressed the Permit Review comments. The Community
Planning and Neighborhood Revitalization (Redevelopment
Authority) Divisions both raised significant issues
pertaining to the safety and welfare of the prospective
enrollment (See Findings 3 and 4).

10. The Detailed Site Plan represents a reasonable alternative for satisfying the site design
guidelines without requiring unreasonable costs and without detracting substantially from
the utility of the proposed development for its intended use.

RECOMMENDATION

Based upon the evaluation of the subject plan, the Urban Design staff recommends that the Planning
Board adopt the findings of this report and APPROVE Detailed Site Plan, SP-99021, with the following
conditions:

1. Prior to certificate approval, the following modifications or revisions shall be made to the
Detailed Site Plan:

1. Provide the location of the trash dumpster and any
applicable screening.
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